

MAXSEC GROUP LIMITED

2014 Annual Financial Report

ABN 89 000 029 265



Corporate Directory

MaxSec Group Limited

ABN 89 000 029 265

Directors

Robert A Broomfield (Chairman, Non-Executive Director)

Geoffrey J Cleaves (CEO and Executive Director)

Jacobus J (Johan) Landsberg (Non-Executive Director)

Company Secretaries

Steven Danielson Geoffrey J Cleaves

Registered Office

Unit 29, 1 Talavera Road North Ryde NSW 2113 Tel: +61 2 8817 2800

Fax: +61 2 8817 2811

Web: <u>www.maxsec.com</u>

Email: investors@maxsec.com

Bankers

Westpac Banking Corporation 60 Martin Place Sydney NSW 2000

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited Level 4 Shop 433 Macquarie Shopping Centre, Herring Road North Ryde NSW 2113

Share Register

Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd Level 5, 115 Grenfell Street Adelaide SA 5000

Tel: +61 8 8236 2300 Fax: +61 8 8236 2305

Auditors

Wong & Mayes, Chartered Accountants Level 16, 309 Kent Street Sydney NSW 2000

Australian Stock Exchange Listing

ASX: MSP

Home exchange Sydney, NSW

About Us

MaxSec Group is a leading global provider of integrated security and turn-key solutions.

MaxSec Group has a world class research and development team, a strong portfolio of proprietary products and, where relevant, sources products through partnerships with leading manufacturers to meet the supply requirements of its customers.

The product portfolio of the Group consists of smart card based access control and biometric solutions and electromechanical locking devices, which are installed in thousands of locations globally.

Notice of Annual General Meeting

A separate notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to shareholders.

Contents

| Chairman's Report | 3 |
|--|----|
| Chief Executive Officer's Report | 4 |
| Corporate Governance Statement | 5 |
| Directors' Report | 10 |
| Auditor's Independence Declaration | 16 |
| Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and other Comprehensive Income | 17 |
| Consolidated Statement of Financial Position | 18 |
| Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity | 19 |
| Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow | 21 |
| Notes to the Financial Statements | 22 |
| Directors' Declaration | 47 |
| Independent Auditor's Report | 48 |
| ASX Additional Information | 50 |

Chairman's Report

Dear Shareholders,

It is my pleasure to present the 2014 Annual Report for Maxsec Group Limited.

The Group continues to make progress towards achieving the strategic objectives outlined at the Group's 2010 Annual General Meeting, and these are:-

- Develop and launch new products to increase market share and profitability;
- Targeted acquisitions to grow the product portfolio, revenue and profits;
- Implementation and continued development of a direct sales model for traditional core markets and a distribution model for developing other markets; and
- Cost control and working capital maximization initiatives.

The CEO's report further details the excellent progress by management and staff against the company's strategic objectives and goals, which yielded a fourth consecutive profitable year.

Some of the highlights include:-

- Additional rollout of Australian Government projects,
- Rebranding of the security locks to the BQT Solutions brand stable,
- Increased marketing effort in the second half of the year which should increase future revenue, and
- New products from both the BQT Solutions Smart Reader & Biometrics division and Locking division.

On behalf of the Board I would like to sincerely thank management and staff for their dedication and effort during the year, and we look forward to another successful year in FY2015.

Robert A Broomfield

Chairman

Group CEO's Report

Dear Shareholders,

It is my pleasure to report that the Group again achieved a Net Profit for the year ended 30 June, 2014.

The Net Profit of \$187K was a 12.91% decrease on the last financial year (2013: \$260K). Revenue was down 27.69% to \$3,144K on the previous year (2013: \$3,610K) and the profit outcome largely reflected increased marketing efforts and a deferral in some expected revenue from delayed projects.

Net Cash available to the consolidated group was \$1,054K (2013: \$1,183K).

A review of prior year results indicates a continued profit achievement since 30 June, 2010.

| Year ended | Profit / Loss | Net Profit / (Loss) (\$000's) | Revenue (\$000's) |
|---------------|---------------|----------------------------------|----------------------|
| 30 June, 2014 | Profit | 187 | 3,144 |
| 30 June, 2013 | Profit | 260 | 3,610 |
| 30 June, 2012 | Profit | 247 | 4,586 |
| 30 June, 2011 | Profit | 45 | 3,205 |
| 30 June, 2010 | Loss | (842) | 3,608 |
| 30 June, 2009 | Loss | (3,716) | 4,566 |
| 30 June, 2008 | Loss | (13,691) | 4,114 |
| 30 June, 2007 | Loss | (29,041) | 3,994 |

Revenue from a number of projects awarded in the 2014 financial year were delayed into to the 2015 financial year. The delays have primarily been the result of client nominated delivery schedules slipping to the 2015 financial year, much of this revenue has already been invoiced in the first quarter of this year.

We have increased our marketing efforts during the second half of the last financial year, completing the rebranding of our security locking range which were previously marketed under the YNOTLOC brand to BQT Solutions. This was done purposely to capitalise on the global brand and synergise our efforts with the other BQT Solutions products. We have also launched a new products and technology focused website that we believe will drive revenue. We have been showcasing our products at major trade shows locally and globally through our own representation and also in conjunction with clients. During the 2015 Financial Year we will be increasing our marketing, attending additional trade shows and booking advertising schedules in targeted industry media.

Both the BQT Solutions Smart Reader and Biometrics division and the Locking division continue their program of developing new products and technologies to remain a leader in their markets. We are into the final development stage of changing over our current product range to the new technology platform and we have commenced development of new products to satisfy market expectations. Products from these development programs have been released for volume production during the 2014 year with more to follow in 2015.

The Directors remain focused on delivering the Group's stated strategic objectives and continue to support management in implementing and executing these objectives to increase shareholder value.

Our new and expanded product lines combined with entry into additional and new markets is expected to increase our opportunities for revenue growth in the coming year, especially when considering the hightened securitry alerts and readiness risks which is dominating world news at the present time.

Geoffrey J Cleaves CEO and Director

Meenes

Corporate Governance Statement

The objective of the Board of MaxSec Group Limited is to create and deliver long-term shareholder value through a range of diversified but interrelated extractive, manufacturing and retailing activities. While each area of the company's business activities holds significant value and makes a substantial contribution towards achieving the Board's objective, management of the synergies arising from the interrelations between the various business activities is critical to achieving the objective of creating and delivering long-term shareholder value.

The Board considers there to be an unambiguous and positive relationship between the creation and delivery of long-term shareholder value and high-quality corporate governance. Accordingly, in pursuing its objective, the Board has committed to corporate governance arrangements that strive to foster the values of integrity, respect, trust and openness among and between Board members, management, employees, customers and suppliers.

MaxSec Group Limited and its subsidiaries operate as a single economic entity with a unified Board and management. As such, the Board's corporate governance arrangements apply to all entities within the economic group.

MaxSec Group Limited is listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX). Accordingly, unless stated otherwise in this document, the Board's corporate governance arrangements comply with the recommendations of the ASX Corporate Governance Council (including the 2010 amendments) as well as current standards of best practice for the entire financial year ended 30 June 2014.

Composition of the Board

The Board comprises 3 Directors, 2 of whom (including the Chair) are non-executive and meet the Board's criteria to be considered independent. The names of the non-executive/independent Directors are:

R A Broomfield Non-Executive Chairman
J J Landsberg Non-Executive Director

An independent Director is a non-executive Director who is not a member of management and who is free of any business or other relationship that could materially interfere with, or could reasonable be perceived to materially interfere with, the independent exercise of their judgment. For a Director to be considered independent, they must meet all of the following materiality thresholds:

- not hold, either directly or indirectly through a related person or entity, more than 10% of the company's outstanding shares;
- not benefit, either directly or through a related person or entity, from any sales to or purchases from the company or any of its related entities; and
- derive no income, either directly or indirectly through a related person or entity, from a contract with the company or any of its related entities.

A complete listing of the Board's Directors for the year ended 30 June 2014, along with their biographical details, is provided in the Directors' report.

The Board considers that the current Board composition reflects an appropriate balance between executive and non-executive Directors that promotes both the generation of shareholder value and effective governance.

The Board also considers that the current Board composition reflects an appropriate balance of skills, expertise and experience to achieve its objective of creating and delivering long-term shareholder value. The diverse range of business activities the company is involved in necessitates the Board having a correspondingly diverse range of skills, experience and expertise. As security access control constitutes a significant part of the company's overall operations, Directors are required to have detailed knowledge and understanding of this industry. Nevertheless, Directors need to have a strong understanding of a range of other areas, including finance, contract law and occupational health and safety requirements.

Notwithstanding the fact that the Board considers its current composition to be appropriate, it has in place an active program for assessing whether individual Directors and the Board as a whole have the skills and knowledge necessary to discharge their responsibilities in accordance with the Board's governance arrangements. Any deficiencies identified by this program can be addressed in a number of ways, including training and the employment of specialist staff. Details of the skills, expertise and experience of each Director are provided in the Directors' report.

Ethical Standards

The Board is committed to its core governance values of integrity, respect, trust and openness among and between Board members, management, employees, customers and suppliers. These values are enshrined in the Board's Code of Conduct policy.

The Code of Conduct policy requires all Directors, management and employees to at all times:

- act honestly and in good faith;
- exercise due care and diligence in fulfilling the functions of office;
- avoid conflicts and make full disclosure of any possible conflict of interest;
- comply with both the letter and spirit of the law;
- encourage the reporting and investigation of unlawful and unethical behaviour; and
- comply with the share trading policy outlined in the Corporate Governance policy.

Directors are obliged to be independent in judgment and ensure all reasonable steps are taken to ensure that the Board's core governance values are not compromised in any decisions the Board makes.

Diversity Policy

Diversity includes, but is not limited to, gender, age, ethnicity and cultural background. The company is committed to diversity and recognises the benefits arising from employee and Board diversity and the importance of benefiting from all available talent. Accordingly, the company has established a diversity policy.

Share Ownership and Share Trading Policy

The Board's policy regarding Directors and employees trading in MaxSec Group Limited shares is set under the Corporate Governance Policy. The policy restricts Directors and employees from acting on material information until it has been released to the market and adequate time has been given for this to be reflected in the company's share price. A detailed description of the Board's policy regarding Directors and employees trading in MaxSec Group Limited shares is available from the Corporate Governance policy.

Directors and key management personnel (KMP) are prohibited from limiting risk attached to incentives paid in the form of options or rights by use of derivatives or other means. Further information on the Board's policy regarding the use of hedging arrangements by Directors over MaxSec Group Limited shares is provided in the remuneration report.

Audit Committee

The role of the audit committee is to assist the Board in monitoring the processes and controls associated with the financial reporting function that ensure the integrity of the company's financial statements. Specifically, the audit committee oversees:

- the appointment, independence, performance and remuneration of the external auditor;
- the integrity of the audit process;
- the effectiveness of the internal controls; and
- compliance with applicable regulatory requirements.

The audit committee comprises 2 Directors (including the Chair of the Board), all of whom are non-executive/independent Directors. Consistent with the ASX's Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations, the Chair of the audit committee is independent and does not hold the position of Chair of the Board.

The names and qualifications of the audit committee members and their attendance at meetings of the committee are included in the Directors' report.

Board's Role and Responsibilities

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for creating and delivering shareholder value through governance of the company's business activities. The discharge of these responsibilities is facilitated by the Board delivering to shareholders timely and balanced disclosures about the company's performance.

As a part of its corporate governance arrangements, the Board has established a strategy for engaging and communicating with shareholders that includes:

- regular meetings with institutional shareholders;
- quarterly reporting to all shareholders; and
- actively encouraging shareholders to attend and participate in the company's Annual General Meeting.

The Board is first and foremost accountable to provide value to its shareholders through delivery of timely and balanced disclosures. The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring its actions are in accordance with key corporate governance principles.

The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Geoffrey J Cleaves, all authorities appropriate and necessary to achieve the Board's objective to create and deliver long-term shareholder value. Notwithstanding these delegations of authority by the Board, the CEO remains accountable to the Board for the authority delegated to him and for the performance of the company's business activities at all times. As noted above, the Board regularly monitors the decisions and actions of the CEO as well as the performance of the company's business activities.

A key plank of the Board Corporate Governance policy is the requirement for all Directors to demonstrate honesty, integrity, and preparedness to critically evaluate all aspects of the company's operations. Inherent in all of this is the expectation that Directors:

- commit the necessary time and energy to fulfill their responsibilities as Directors; and
- place the interests of the company before their personal interests.

The Chair is responsible for ensuring individual Directors, the Board as a whole and KMP comply with both the letter and spirit of the Board's governance arrangements. The Chair discharges their responsibilities in a number of ways, primarily through:

- setting agendas in collaboration with other Directors and KMP;
- encouraging critical evaluation and debate among Directors;
- managing Board meetings to ensure that all critical matters are given sufficient attention; and
- communicating with stakeholders as and when required.

Independent Directors have the right to seek independent professional advice on any matter connected with the discharge of their responsibilities as Directors at the company's expense. Written approval must be obtained from the Chair prior to incurring any expense on behalf of the company.

Shareholder Rights

Shareholders are entitled to vote on significant matters impacting on the business, which include the election and remuneration of Directors, changes to the constitution and receipt of annual and interim financial statements. The Board actively encourages shareholders to attend and participate in the Annual General Meetings of MaxSec Group Limited, to lodge questions to be responded by the Board and/or the CEO, and are able to appoint proxies.

Monitoring of the Board's Performance and Communication to Shareholders

In order to ensure that the Board continues to discharge its responsibilities in an appropriate manner, the performance of all Directors is reviewed annually by the chairperson. Directors whose performance is unsatisfactory are asked to retire.

The Board of Directors aims to ensure that the shareholders, on behalf of whom they act, are informed of all information necessary to assess the performance of the Directors. Information is communicated to the shareholders through:

- the annual report which is distributed to all shareholders;
- the half-yearly report distributed to all shareholders; and
- the annual general meeting and other meetings so called to obtain approval for Board action as appropriate.

ASX Corporate Governance Principles

The Directors of MaxSec Group Ltd support the principles of the ASX Corporate Governance Guidelines. To date, due to the size of the company the Board has not formally adopted all policies or guidelines required for compliance with the ASX's guidelines.

Principle 1 - Lay Sound Foundations for Management and Oversight

The Board has adopted a corporate governance policy which sets out clear guidelines to ensure proper management and control over the affairs of the company

Principle 2 – Structure the Board to Add Value

The Board currently includes three independent Directors, one of whom is the Chairman. Information on the experience and competencies are included in the Annual Report. The company will seek to establish a remuneration committee, which due to the company's size has not as yet been done.

Principle 3 – Promote Ethical and Responsible Decision-Making

The corporate governance policy ensures Ethical and Responsible Decision making through formal processes and delegated authorities.

Principle 4 – Safeguard Integrity in Financial Reporting

An audit committee was established on 4 June 2003 being made up of the non-executive members of the Board. The structure consists of only non-executive Directors who are independent and the chairman is not chairman of the Board.

Principle 5 – Make Timely and Balanced Disclosure

The Directors have always adhered to the principles of continuous disclosure. Written policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance have been introduced during the year and will be continually reviewed.

Principle 6 – Respect the Rights of Shareholders

The company believes that it adequately communicates relevant information to all shareholders on a timely basis. The company encourages shareholder participation at shareholder meetings. The external auditor is requested to attend the annual general meeting to answer shareholders' questions about the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the auditor's report.

Principle 7 – Recognise and Manage Risk

The Directors are aware of the need to identify and manage risk, no formal policies or procedures have been established to date, given the size of the company. The chief executive officer and the chief financial officer (or equivalent) should state to the Board in writing that the statement given in accordance with best practice concerning the integrity of the financial statements and is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal compliance and controls which implement the policies adopted by the Board; the statement also should confirm that the company's risk management and internal compliance and control system is operating efficiently and effectively in all material respects.

Principle 8 - Encourage Enhanced Performance

Formal performance evaluation criteria and processes will be established in the future. Given the current size and direction of the company this was not formally introduced during the year.

Principle 9 – Remunerate Fairly and Responsibly

Remuneration of the Company's Directors has been disclosed in the Annual Report. Due to its size no formal structure for the remuneration of Directors has been established as yet but the company plans to do so when appropriate.

Principle 10 - Recognise the Legitimate Interests of Stakeholders

The Directors recognize the importance of compliance with legal and other obligations. The Directors believe they, together with their advisors, have the necessary experience to ensure these interests are protected.

Directors' Report

Your Directors present their report, together with the financial statements of the Group, being the company and its controlled entities, for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

Principal Activities and Significant Changes in Nature of Activities

The principal activities during the year, of entities within the consolidated entity, were the investment, development and marketing of security access control products.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the consolidated group's principal activities during the financial year.

Operating Results

The Financial Report shows the following results for the consolidated MaxSec Group Limited ("MSP" or the "Group") entity.

(a) Revenue and Profit

The consolidated Group generated a net profit of \$187K (2013: \$260K) with revenues of \$3,144K (2013: \$3,610K).

This financial year end result represents a decrease of \$73K (-27.69%) on the previous year's net profit which is reflective of increased marketing effort and development of new markets. The lower revenue can be attributed to the delay in some major projects, some of which have already been invoiced in the new financial year.

(b) Net Cash

Net Cash used by Operating Activities was \$346K (2013: \$365K provided), receipts from customers amounted to \$3,093K (2013: \$3,577K) and payments to suppliers and employees amounted to \$3,727K (2013: \$3,491K) reflecting strict cost controls measures to mitigate decreased revenues and higher investment into marketing and market development efforts.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to \$259K (2013: \$507K) and relates primarily to our investment in continuous improvement of product and technology platforms which will provide both revenue benefits and cost savings in future periods.

The net cash raised in financing activities for the year was \$500K (2013: \$Nil) from the issue of 20,000,000 shares. Net cash available to the consolidated Group was \$1,054K (2013: \$1,183K).

Review of Operations

During the 2014 financial year the Group supplied several significant projects in both Australia and the Middle East, however we also saw a delay in expected orders due to several client projects running behind schedule. We have continued to invest significantly in new products during the year which we feel will generate additional revenue and cost saving opportunities for the Group in future periods.

We have significantly increased our marketing and business development efforts during the course of 2014 and we are starting to see an increase in both brand awareness and also order enquiry.

New Products

The BQT Solutions divisions remain a leader in their markets through a sustained development program to deliver new and improved products and technologies. BQT Solutions Smart Reader and Biometrics division continues to improve our new integrated technology platform for their range of smart card readers and our locking division has developed two new models of the Cobalt side load lock.

Summary and Outlook

The financial net profit performance of MaxSec Group Limited consolidated group continues to show a marked improvement on the prior years from 30 June, 2010:-

| Year ended | Profit / Loss | Net Profit / (Loss) (\$000's) | Revenue (\$000's) |
|---------------|---------------|----------------------------------|----------------------|
| 30 June, 2014 | Profit | 147 | 3,144 |
| 30 June, 2013 | Profit | 260 | 3,610 |
| 30 June, 2012 | Profit | 247 | 4,586 |
| 30 June, 2011 | Profit | 45 | 3,205 |
| 30 June, 2010 | Loss | (842) | 3,608 |
| 30 June, 2009 | Loss | (3,716) | 4,566 |
| 30 June, 2008 | Loss | (13,691) | 4,114 |
| 30 June, 2007 | Loss | (29,041) | 3,994 |

The Group has consolidated its products and service offering to a market that demands quality, innovation and excellent customer service and are well positioned to focus on expanding and supporting its global marketing and sales reach.

The Directors remain focused on continuing along the path of delivering the Group's stated strategic objectives as noted below and continue to support management in implementing and executing these objectives to increase shareholder value.

Events after the Reporting Period

No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or could significantly affect the operations of the consolidated group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the consolidated group in future financial years.

Information on the Directors

The names and details of the Company's Directors in office during the financial year and until the date of this report are as follows. Directors were in office for this entire period unless otherwise stated.

Mr. Robert Andrew Broomfield, Chairman

Mr. Robert Broomfield is a seasoned business executive with more than 20 years of management experience including the past 8 years in senior positions within companies operating in the security industry.

Mr. Broomfield is currently the CEO and Executive Director of a security technology company, Future Fibre Technologies Pty Ltd (FFT), which has achieved significant success in the last 4 years under Robert's leadership and is now rated as the world's leading manufacturer of Fibre Optic based Intrusion Detection Systems.

Prior to joining FFT, he was with Vision Systems Ltd, where he served as the General Manager of Asia Pacific for their Fire and Security systems.

In addition to his international sales and marketing success, Mr. Broomfield has extensive experience in operations management, including product engineering, procurement, manufacturing and operations. He has previously had 10 years' experience with IBM in Australia and the United States.

Mr. Broomfield joined the MSP Board on 5 October 2010 and holds no positions on Boards of other Australian listed companies.

Mr. Geoffrey John Cleaves, Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Geoffrey Cleaves has over 25 years' experience in finance and operations management within the property, media, print, manufacturing, oil and gas and investment sectors, last 20 years in senior management positions with both listed and unlisted corporations.

During Geoff's career he has held senior management positions with organisations such as Stockland Group, Chase Corporation, Milton Corporation, Trafalgar Corporate Group, Australian Petroleum Fund and the Independent Print Media Group.

Geoff is a professional manager and his core competencies include general management, investment, asset and funds management, treasury and finance.

Mr. Cleaves' highest educational qualification is a Master degree in Professional Accounting, he also holds the following professional designations: FIPA and SA Fin.

Mr. Cleaves joined the MSP Board on 5 October 2010 and holds no positions on Boards of other Australian listed companies.

Mr. Jacobus J (Johan) Landsberg, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Landsberg was born in 1969 in South Africa. He served as an Officer in the South African Defence Force before starting his professional career in the services industry.

He holds qualifications in Business Management and Marketing as well as various safety and security related certifications.

Mr. Landsberg migrated to Australia in 1999. He joined the security industry as a senior executive in various capacities in the successful implementation of large technology deployments in Australia. He has broad experience in related areas including distribution, contract, and risk management.

Mr. Landsberg was previously a senior executive of MaxSec Group Limited and returns with both a good understanding of the Company's history and a wealth of experience gained in the industry.

Mr. Landsberg is currently contracted to the public sector providing commercial and technical guidance on the deployment of technologies in large scale implementations.

Mr. Landsberg joined the MSP Board on 6 May 2010 and holds no positions on Boards of other Australian listed companies.

Company Secretaries

The following persons held the position of company secretary at the end of the financial year:

Mr. Steven Danielson FCA, BBS is a Company Secretary, who was appointed in November 2008. He has extensive experience as a company secretary of ASX listed companies.

Mr. Geoffrey J Cleaves MPA, FIPA, SAFIN is a Company Secretary, who was appointed on 30 July 2010. He has broad experience in corporate finance & accounting and commercial and funds management.

Directors' Report (Cont.)

Meetings of Directors

During the financial year, 16 meetings of Directors (including committees of Directors) were held. Attendances by each Director during the year were as follows:

| | Director's Meetings /(Eligible to Attend) | Audit Committee Meetings /(Eligible to Attend) |
|------------------------------|---|--|
| Number of meetings held: | | |
| Number of meetings attended: | | |
| R A Broomfield | 13 / (13) | 3/(3) |
| G J Cleaves | 12 / (12) | 0/(0) |
| J J Landsberg | 13 / (13) | 3/(3) |

Interests in the Shares and Options of the Company and Related Bodies Corporate

As at the date of this report, the interests of the Directors in the shares and options of MaxSec Group Limited were:

| | Ordinary Shares | Options over Ordinary Shares |
|----------------|-----------------|---------------------------------|
| R A Broomfield | 2,500,000 | Nil |
| G J Cleaves | Nil | Nil |
| J J Landsberg | Nil | Nil |

Dividends

No dividends have been paid or declared since the end of the previous financial year.

Private Placement Activities

The Company issued 20,000,000 shares at 2.5 cents per share under private placement in 12 May 2014.

Significant Changes In The State Of Affairs

In the opinion of the Directors there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity that occurred during the financial year under review

Likely Developments And Expected Results

The likely developments, future prospects and business strategies, including expected results have not been included in this report as the Directors believe on reasonable grounds that the inclusion of such information would likely result in unreasonable prejudice to the economic entity.

Environmental Regulation And Performance

The Company's operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulation under a law of the Commonwealth or of a State or Territory.

Indemnification And Insurance Of Directors And Officers

During the financial year the Company has paid insurance premiums to insure certain officers of the Company. Officers of the Company include the Company's Directors and secretaries. The liabilities insured include costs and expenses that may be incurred in defending civil or criminal proceedings that may be brought against the officers in their capacity as officers of the Company or related body corporate, other than conduct involving a willful breach of duty in relation to the Company.

Directors' Report (Cont.)

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES REMUNERATION

Remuneration Report

This report details the nature and amount of remuneration for each Director of MaxSec Group Limited.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of MaxSec Group Limited has been designed to align Director objectives with shareholder and business objectives by providing a fixed remuneration component and offering specific long-term incentives based on key performance areas affecting the economic entity's financial results. The Board of MaxSec Group Limited believes the remuneration policy to be appropriate and effective in its ability to attract and retain the best Directors to run and manage the economic entity, as well as create goal congruence between Directors and shareholders.

The Board's policy for determining the nature and amount of remuneration for Board members of the economic entity is as follows:

The remuneration policy, setting the terms and conditions for the executive Director, was developed by and approved by the Board after seeking professional advice from independent external consultants.

The Board policy is to remunerate non-executive Directors at market rates for comparable companies for time, commitment and responsibilities. The maximum aggregate amount of fees that can be paid to non-executive Directors is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. Fees for non-executive Directors are not linked to the performance of the economic entity.

Company Performance, Shareholder Wealth and Directors' Remuneration

The remuneration policy has been tailored to increase goal congruence between shareholders and Directors. The method applied in achieving this aim, being the issue of options to the majority of Directors to encourage the alignment of personal and shareholder interests.

Details of the nature and amount of each major element of the remuneration of each Director of the Company are as follows:

| 2014 | Salary/fees | Other benefits | Options issued | Superannuation | Total |
|---|-------------------|---|-------------------|----------------------|--------------|
| Directors-Non executive | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ |
| R A Broomfield | 27,460 | = | - | 2,540 | 30,000 |
| J J Landsberg | 27,460 | <u> </u> | - | 2,540 | 30,000 |
| Directors-Executive | | | | | |
| G J Cleaves | 201,530 | - | 1.00 | 18,642 | 220,172 |
| 4013 | | | | | |
| | Calami/faca | O41- 0- 1- 0- 0- 0- 0- 0- 0- 0- 0- 0- 0- 0- 0- 0- | Ontions issued | Cumanannadian | Total |
| 2013 | Salary/fees | Other benefits | Options issued | Superannuation | Total |
| 2013 Directors-Non executive | Salary/fees \$ | Other benefits \$ | Options issued \$ | Superannuation \$ | Total \$ |
| | • | | - | - | |
| Directors-Non executive | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ |
| Directors-Non executive R A Broomfield | \$ 27,528 | \$ | \$ | \$ 2,472 | \$ 30,000 |

In view of the small size and flat corporate structure of the company and the economic entity, all management decisions are currently taken by the Chief Executive Officer and the non-executive Directors.

Employment Contracts of Directors

Details of the key terms of Geoffrey Cleaves (current Chief Executive Office/Director) employment contracts have been released as a Company Announcement to the ASX.

Options

There is no option held by Directors at the date of this report.

Option holders do not have any rights to participate in any issues of shares or other interests in the company or any other entity.

There have been no unissued shares or interests under option of any controlled entity within the Group during or since the end of the reporting period.

Proceedings On Behalf Of The Company

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or any part of those proceedings. The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.

Non Audit Services

The Board of Directors, in accordance with advice from the audit committee, is satisfied that the provision of non-audit services during the year is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The Directors are satisfied that the services disclosed below did not compromise the external auditor's independence for the following reasons:

- all non-audit services are reviewed and approved by the audit committee prior to commencement to ensure they do not adversely affect the integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and
- the nature of the services provided does not compromise the general principles relating to auditor independence in accordance with APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants set by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board.

The following fees were paid or payable to Wong & Mayes for non-audit services during the year ended 30 June 2014:

| | \$ |
|---------------------------|----------|
| Taxation services | 11,900 |
| Over-provision adjustment | (28,055) |
| | (16,155) |

Auditor's Independence Declaration

The lead auditor's independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2014 has been received and can be found on page 16 of the financial report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Geoffrey J Cleaves CEO and Director

Sydney, 24th September 2014

Mences



A.B.N 33 154 816 995 (incorporating Powell Kwok & Co) LEVEL 16 309 KENT STREET SYDNEY N.S.W. 2000

P.O. BOX H169 AUSTRALIA SQUARE, SYDNEY 1215

> TELEPHONE (02) 9290 1633 FACSIMILE (02) 9262 1408 mailbox@wongmayes.com.au www.wongmayes.com.au

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER S307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001

TO THE DIRECTORS OF MAXSEC GROUP LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2014, there have been:-

- no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and
- ii. no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

WONG & MAYES
Chartered Accountants

ANITA WONG | Partner

Sydney

Date: 19th September 2014

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2014

| | Note | Consolida | ated Group | |
|---|-----------|------------------|-------------------------|--|
| | | 2014 | 2013 | |
| | | \$ | \$ | |
| Continuing operations | | 2.4.12.000 | | |
| Revenue | 4a | 3,143,898 | 3,610,158 | |
| Other income | 4a | 273,885 | 258,341 | |
| Raw materials and consumables used | 5a | (1,113,490) | (1,299,472) | |
| Employee benefits expense | | (1,300,336) | (1,322,938) | |
| Depreciation and amortisation expense | | (58,617) | (27,481) | |
| Finance costs | | (5,032) | (5,591) | |
| Other expenses | _ | (753,115) | (953,013) | |
| Profit before income tax | | 187,193 | 260,004 | |
| Income tax expense | | | | |
| Profit from continuing operations | | 187,193 | 260,004 | |
| Discontinued operations | | | | |
| Profit/(Loss) for the year from discontinued operations after tax | | 1 = 1 | 5 4 0 | |
| Net Profit for the year | | 187,193 | 260,004 | |
| | | | | |
| Other comprehensive income: | :- | * | - | |
| Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax | | • | | |
| Total comprehensive income for the year | · | 187,193 | 260,004 | |
| Profit attributable to: | | | | |
| Members of the parent entity | | 187,193 | 260,004 | |
| Non-controlling interest | o <u></u> | | | |
| | · | 187,193 | 260,004 | |
| Total comprehensive income attributable to: | _ | | | |
| Members of the parent entity | | 187,193 | 260,004 | |
| Non-controlling interest | | | - | |
| | _ | 187,193 | 260,004 | |
| Earnings per share | - | | | |
| From continuing and discontinued operations: | | | | |
| Basic earnings per share (cents) | 10 | 0.109 cents | 0.153 cents | |
| | 19 | 0.109 cents | 0.153 cents 0.153 cents | |
| Diluted earnings per share (cents) | 19 | 0.109 cents | 0.133 cems | |

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2014

| | Note | Consolid | ated Group | |
|--|------|--------------|--------------|--|
| | | 2014 | 2013 | |
| | | \$ | \$ | |
| ASSETS | | | | |
| CURRENT ASSETS | | | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents | | 1,054,147 | 1,183,237 | |
| Trade and other receivables | 6 | 653,382 | 609,369 | |
| Inventories | 7 | 662,991 | 652,667 | |
| Other assets | 8 | 79,725 | 161,423 | |
| TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS | _ | 2,450,245 | 2,606,696 | |
| NON-CURRENT ASSETS | | | | |
| Property, plant and equipment | 11 | 42,202 | 33,525 | |
| Intangible assets | 12 | 1,576,520 | 1,397,458 | |
| TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS | - | 1,618,722 | 1,430,983 | |
| TOTAL ASSETS | | 4,068,967 | 4,037,679 | |
| | | | | |
| LIABILITIES | | | | |
| CURRENT LIABILITIES | | | | |
| Trade and other payables | 13 | 341,941 | 648,413 | |
| Provisions | 14 | 207,924 | 524,747 | |
| Other current liabilities | | | :#s_ | |
| TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES | | 549,865 | 1,173,160 | |
| NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES | - | | | |
| Provisions | 14 | 38,765 | 34,318 | |
| TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES | _ | 38,765 | 34,318 | |
| TOTAL LIABILITIES | - | 588,630 | 1,207,478 | |
| NET ASSETS | _ | 3,480,337 | 2,830,201 | |
| EQUITY | | | | |
| Issued capital | 15 | 60,761,198 | 60,261,198 | |
| Reserves | 16 | 24,300,336 | 24,337,393 | |
| Retained earnings/(accumulated losses) | | (81,581,197) | (81,768,390) | |
| Parent interest | | 3,480,337 | 2,830,201 | |
| Non-controlling interest | ł= | | <u> </u> | |
| TOTAL EQUITY | | 3,480,337 | 2,830,201 | |
| | | | | |

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June 2014

| | Note | Share Capital | Share Based Expenses Reserve | Capital Profit Reserves | Foreign Currency Translation Reserves | Retained Earnings | Total Equity |
|--|------|---------------------------------------|------------------------------------|----------------------------|--|----------------------|--------------|
| | | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ |
| Balance at 1 July 2012 | | 60,261,198 | 23,276,902 | 1,031,042 | (29,741) | (82,028,394) | 2,511,007 |
| Retrospective adjustment upon change in accounting policy | | | = | ÷ | Œ | : | |
| Balance at 1 July 2012 | | | | | | | |
| Comprehensive income | | | | | | | |
| Profit for the year | | | | | | 260.004 | 260.004 |
| Other comprehensive income for the | | 100 | | | · • | 260,004 | 260,004 |
| year | | | 2 | <u> </u> | | | <u> </u> |
| Total comprehensive income for the | | | | | | | |
| year | | (E) | .7 | * | | 260,004 | 260,004 |
| Transactions with owners, in their capacity as owners, and other transfers | | | | | | | |
| Foreign Currency Translation Reserve | | (4) | | - | N#G | | ¥ |
| Dividends recognised for the year | | (*) | * | *: | ::e: | | |
| Share issued during the year | | | | | 0.72 | | |
| Total transactions with owners and other transfers | | | * | ş_ | , | · | |
| Other | | | | | | | |
| Foreign Currency Translation Reserve | | | | | 60 100 | | 50.100 |
| Total other | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | - | | 59,190 | - | 59,190 |
| Balance at 30 June 2013 | | | ** | | 59,190 | | 59,190 |
| Dalance at 30 June 2013 | | 60,261,198 | 23,276,902 | 1,031,042 | 29,449 | (81,768,390) | 2,830,201 |
| Balance at 1 July 2013 | | 60,261,198 | 23,276,902 | 1,031,042 | 29,449 | (81,768,390) | 2,830,201 |
| Comprehensive income | | | | | | | |
| Profit for the year | | 30 | - | - | 35 | 187,193 | 187,193 |
| Other comprehensive income for the year | | :#4: | _ | _ | 1 <u>2</u> | - , | |
| Total comprehensive income for the | | 7 | | | | | |
| year | | (2) | ¥ | | 320 | 187,193 | 187,193 |

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Cont.) for the year ended 30 June 2014

| | Note Shar | e Capital | Share Based Expenses Reserve | Capital Profit Reserves | Foreign Currency Translation Reserves | Retained Earnings | Total Equity |
|--|-----------|-----------|------------------------------------|----------------------------|--|----------------------|--------------|
| | | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ | S | 9 |
| Transactions with owners, in their capacity as owners, and other transfers | | | | | | | |
| Shares issued during the year | 50 | 00,000 | ::=: | 200 | | | 500,000 |
| Dividends recognised for the year | | | - V25 | 4 | ž. | 34 | |
| Total transactions with owners and other transfers | 50 | 00,000 | 780 | 5 8)S | | 12 | 500,000 |
| Other | | | | | | | |
| Foreign Currency Translation Reserve | <u>-</u> | <u> </u> | <u> </u> | (<u>a)</u> | (37,057) | <u>)2.</u> | (37,057) |
| Total other | | 8 | | | (37,057) | 12 | (37,057) |
| Balance at 30 June 2014 | 60,70 | 51,198 | 23,276,902 | 1,031,042 | (7,608) | (81,581,197) | 3,480,337 |

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 30 June 2014

| | Note | Consolid | ted Group | |
|---|---------------|--------------|-------------|--|
| | | 2014 | 2013 | |
| | | \$ | \$ | |
| CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES | | | | |
| Receipts from customers | | 3,092,905 | 3,577,397 | |
| Other Receipts | 4a | 273,885 | 258,341 | |
| Payments to suppliers and employee | | (3,727,011) | (3,491,136) | |
| Interest received | 4a | 19,578 | 26,270 | |
| Finance costs | | (5,032) | (5,591) | |
| Income tax paid | | Ě | | |
| Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities | 22 | (345,675) | 365,281 | |
| CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES | \ | | | |
| Payments for product development expenses | | (244,253) | (488,529) | |
| Purchase of property, plant and equipment | | (15,130) | (18,076) | |
| Purchase of controlled entity - Magna Electronics Pte Ltd | | | | |
| Loan to related parties – payment made | · | at | | |
| Net cash used in investing activities | | (259,383) | (506,605) | |
| CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES | , | | | |
| Proceeds from issue of shares | | 500,000 | 3 | |
| Repayment of borrowings | G==== | _ | | |
| Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities | | 500,000 | ⊕ (; | |
| Net increase in cash held | | (105,058) | (141,324) | |
| Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year | | 1,183,237 | 1,319,939 | |
| Exchange Adjustment | | (24,032) | 4,622 | |
| Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year | - | 1,054,147 | 1,183,237 | |

Notes to the Financial Statements

These consolidated financial statements and notes represent those of MaxSec Group Limited and Controlled Entities (the "consolidated group" or "Group").

The separate financial statements of the parent entity, MaxSec Group Limited, have not been presented within this financial report as permitted by the *Corporations Act 2001*.

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 22nd September 2014 by the Directors of the company.

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations of the Australian Accounting Standards Board and International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. The Group is a for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes under Australian Accounting Standards. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below and have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise.

Except for cash flow information, the financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities.

a. Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of entities controlled by MaxSec Group Limited at the end of the reporting period. A controlled entity is any entity over which MaxSec Group Limited has the ability and right to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from the entity's activities.

Where controlled entities have entered or left the Group during the year, the financial performance of those entities is included only for the period of the year that they were controlled. A list of controlled entities is contained in Note 10 to the financial statements.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all intra-group balances and transactions between entities in the consolidated group have been eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests, being the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent, are reported separately within the equity section of the consolidated statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income. The non-controlling interests in the net assets comprise their interests at the date of the original business combination and their share of changes in equity since that date.

Business combinations

Business combinations occur where an acquirer obtains control over one or more businesses.

A business combination is accounted for by applying the acquisition method, unless it is a combination involving entities or businesses under common control. The business combination will be accounted for from the date that control is attained, whereby the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) assumed is recognised (subject to certain limited exemptions).

When measuring the consideration transferred in the business combination, any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement is also included. Subsequent to initial recognition, contingent consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is remeasured each reporting period to fair value, recognising any change to fair value in profit or loss, unless the change in value can be identified as existing at acquisition date.

All transaction costs incurred in relation to the business combination are expensed to the statement of comprehensive income when incurred.

The acquisition of a business may result in the recognition of goodwill or a gain from a bargain purchase.

Goodwill

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the sum of:

- i the consideration transferred;
- ii any non-controlling interest; and
- iii the acquisition date fair value of any previously held equity interest;

over the acquisition date fair value of net identifiable assets acquired.

The acquisition date fair value of the consideration transferred for a business combination plus the acquisition date fair value of any previously held equity interest shall form the cost of the investment in the separate financial statements.

Fair value remeasurements in any pre-existing equity holdings are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Where changes in the value of such equity holdings had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income, such amounts are recycled to profit or loss.

The amount of goodwill recognised on acquisition of each subsidiary in which the Group holds less than a 100% interest will depend on the method adopted in measuring the non-controlling interest. The Group can elect in most circumstances to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value (full goodwill method) or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the subsidiary's identifiable net assets (proportionate interest method). In such circumstances, the Group determines which method to adopt for each acquisition and this is stated in the respective notes to these financial statements disclosing the business combination.

Under the full goodwill method, the fair value of the non-controlling interest is determined using valuation techniques which make the maximum use of market information where available. Under this method, goodwill attributable to the non-controlling interests is recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition of associates is included in investments in associates.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units or Groups of cash-generating units, representing the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored being not larger than an operating segment. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill related to the entity disposed of.

Changes in the ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions and do not affect the carrying amounts of goodwill.

b. Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of assembled products includes direct materials costs plus any costs associated with the outsourcing of the assembly process.

c. Plant and Equipment

Each class of plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

In the event the carrying amount of plant and equipment is greater than the estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to the estimated recoverable amount and impairment losses are recognised either in profit or loss or as a revaluation decrease if the impairment losses relate to a revalued asset. A formal assessment of recoverable amount is made when impairment indicators are present.

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows that will be received from the asset's employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have been discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts.

The cost of fixed assets constructed within the consolidated group includes the cost of materials, direct labour, borrowing costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as expenses in the statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings and capitalised lease assets, but excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset's useful life to the consolidated group commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

Class of Fixed Asset

Depreciation Rate

Plant and equipment

10-30%

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains and losses are included in the statement of comprehensive income. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.

Impairment

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset has been impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events (a "loss event") having occurred, which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset(s).

In the case of available-for-sale financial instruments, a prolonged decline in the value of the instrument is considered to determine whether an impairment has arisen. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Also, any cumulative decline in fair value previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss at this point.

In the case of financial assets carried at amortised cost, loss events may include: indications that the debtors or a group of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; indications that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost (including loans and receivables), a separate allowance account is used to reduce the carrying amount of financial assets impaired by credit losses. After having taken all possible measures of recovery, if management establishes that the carrying amount cannot be recovered by any means, at that point the written-off amounts are charged to the allowance account or the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is reduced directly if no impairment amount was previously recognised in the allowance account.

When the terms of financial assets that would otherwise have been past due or impaired have been renegotiated, the Group recognises the impairment for such financial assets by taking into account the original terms as if the terms have not been renegotiated so that the loss events that have occurred are duly considered.

d. Impairment of Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. The assessment will include the consideration of external and internal sources of information including dividends received from subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities deemed to be out of pre-acquisition profits. If such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by comparing the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use, to the asset's carrying amount. Any excess of the asset's carrying amount over its recoverable amount is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount in accordance with another Standard (eg in accordance with the revaluation model in AASB 116). Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease in accordance with that other Standard.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Impairment testing is performed annually for goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives.

e. Leases

Leases of fixed assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset, but not the legal ownership that is transferred to entities in the consolidated group, are classified as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalised by recognising an asset and a liability at the lower of the amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest expense for the period.

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the lease term.

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

f. Intangibles other than Goodwill

Patents and trademarks

Patents and trademarks are recognised at cost of acquisition. Patents and trademarks have a finite life and are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. Patents and trademarks are amortised over their useful life.

Research and development

Expenditure during the research phase of a project is recognised as an expense when incurred. Product development costs are capitalised only when technical feasibility studies identify that the product is expected to deliver future economic benefits and these benefits can be measured reliably.

Product development costs have a finite life and are amortised on a systematic basis based on the future economic benefits over the useful life of the product.

g. Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each of the Group's entities is measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which that entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars which is the parent entity's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the year-end exchange rate. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost continue to be carried at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value are reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were determined.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss, except where deferred in equity as a qualifying cash flow or net investment hedge.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items are recognised directly in other comprehensive income to the extent that the underlying gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income; otherwise the exchange difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Group companies

The financial results and position of foreign operations, whose functional currency is different from the Group's presentation currency, are translated as follows:

- assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period;
- income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the period; and
- retained earnings are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations with functional currencies other than Australian dollars are recognised in other comprehensive income and included in the foreign currency translation reserve in the statement of financial position. The cumulative amount of these differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the operation is disposed.

h. Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Provision is made for the Group's obligation for short-term employee benefits. Short-term employee benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service, including wages, salaries and sick leave. Short-term employee benefits are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when the obligation is settled.

The Group's obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and sick leave are recognised as a part of current trade and other payables in the statement of financial position. The Group's obligations for employees' annual leave and long service leave entitlements are recognised as provisions in the statement of financial position.

Other long-term employee benefits

Provision is made for employees' long service leave and annual leave entitlements not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service. Other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the expected future payments to be made to employees. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage and salary levels, durations of service and employee departures and are discounted at rates determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have maturity dates that approximate the terms of the obligations. Any remeasurements for changes in assumptions of obligations for other long-term employee benefits are recognised in profit or loss in the periods in which the changes occur.

The Group's obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current provisions in its statement of financial position, except where the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period, in which case the obligations are presented as current provisions.

i. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

Provisions are measured using the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.

j. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits available on demand with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of 2 months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are reported within short-term borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

k. Revenue and Other Income

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after taking into account any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed. When the inflow of consideration is deferred, it is treated as the provision of financing and is discounted at a rate of interest that is generally accepted in the market for similar arrangements. The difference between the amount initially recognised and the amount ultimately received is interest revenue.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point of delivery as this corresponds to the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and the cessation of all involvement in those goods.

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method.

Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend has been established.

Dividends received from associates and joint venture entities are accounted for in accordance with the equity method of accounting.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

1. Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables include amounts due from customers for goods sold and services performed in the ordinary course of business. Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.

m. Trade and Other Pavables

Trade and other payables represent the liabilities for goods and services received by the entity that remain unpaid at the end of the reporting period. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability.

n. Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST receivable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are presented as operating cash flows included in receipts from customers or payments to suppliers.

o. Comparative Figures

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year.

Where the Group has retrospectively applied an accounting policy, made a retrospective restatement of items in the financial statements or reclassified items in its financial statements, an additional statement of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period will be disclosed.

p. Government Grant

Government Grants are recognized at fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all grant conditions will be met.

q. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The directors evaluate estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial statements based on historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the Group.

Key estimates

(i) Impairment – general

The Group assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions and events specific to the Group that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are reassessed using value-in-use calculations which incorporate various key assumptions.

Key judgments

(i) Provision for impairment of receivables

Included in trade receivables at the end of the reporting period is an amount receivable from sales made to 2 small customers during the current financial year amounting to \$1,774. These customers went into liquidation. While there is inherent uncertainty in relation to the outcome of the liquidation, the directors understand that the full amount of the debt is unlikely to be recoverable from the liquidators, and therefore provision for impairment has been made.

r. New Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods

Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the AASB that are not yet mandatorily applicable to the Group, together with an assessment of the potential impact of such pronouncements on the Group when adopted in future periods, are discussed below:

- AASB 9: Financial Instruments and associated Amending Standards (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2017).

The Standard will be applicable retrospectively (subject to the comment on hedge accounting below) and includes revised requirements for the classification and measurement of financial instruments, revised recognition and derecognition requirements for financial instruments and simplified requirements for hedge accounting.

The key changes made to the Standard that may affect the Group on initial application include certain simplifications to the classification of financial assets, simplifications to the accounting of embedded derivatives, and the irrevocable election to recognise gains and losses on investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading in other comprehensive income. AASB 9 also introduces a new model for hedge accounting that will allow greater flexibility in the ability to hedge risk, particularly with respect to hedges of non-financial items. Should the entity elect to change its hedge policies in line with the new hedge accounting requirements of AASB 9, the application of such accounting would be largely prospective.

Although the directors anticipate that the adoption of AASB 9 may have an impact on the Group's financial instruments, including hedging activity, it is impracticable at this stage to provide a reasonable estimate of such impact.

- AASB 2012–3: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2014). This Standard provides clarifying guidance relating to the offsetting of financial instruments, which is not expected to impact the Group's financial statements
- Interpretation 21: Levies (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2014).

Interpretation 21 clarifies the circumstances under which a liability to pay a levy imposed by a government should be recognised, and whether that liability should be recognised in full at a specific date or progressively over a period of time. This Interpretation is not expected to significantly impact the Group's financial statements.

- AASB 2013–3: Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2014).

This Standard amends the disclosure requirements in AASB 136: Impairment of Assets pertaining to the use of fair value in impairment assessment and is not expected to significantly impact the Group's financial statements.

- AASB 2013–4: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2014).

AASB 2013—4 makes amendments to AASB 139: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to permit the continuation of hedge accounting in circumstances where a derivative, which has been designated as a hedging instrument, is novated from one counterparty to a central counterparty as a consequence of laws or regulations. The amendments are not expected to significantly impact the Group.

- AASB 2013–5: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Investment Entities (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2014).

AASB 2013-5 amends AASB 10: Consolidated Financial Statements to define an "investment entity" and requires, with limited exceptions, that the subsidiaries of such entities be accounted for at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with AASB 9 and not be consolidated. Additional disclosures are also required. As neither the parent nor its subsidiaries meet the definition of an investment entity, this Standard is not expected to significantly impact the Group's financial statements.

Notes To The Financial Statements (Cont.)

2. COMPANY DETAILS

The registered office of the company and the principal place of business is:

MaxSec Group Limited Unit 29 1 Talavera Road North Ryde NSW 2113

3. PARENT INFORMATION

The following information has been extracted from the books and records of the parent and has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.

| accordance with reastrain recounting standards. | 2014 \$ | 2013 \$ |
|---|--------------|--------------|
| STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION | | |
| ASSETS | | |
| Current assets | 841,847 | 1,087,343 |
| Non-Current assets | 24,340,851 | 23,499,832 |
| TOTAL ASSETS | 25,182,698 | 24,587,175 |
| LIABILITIES | | |
| Current liabilities | 122,970 | 32,066 |
| Non-Current liabilities | π | S#2 |
| TOTAL LIABILITIES | 122,970 | 32,066 |
| NET ASSETS | 25,059,728 | 24,555,109 |
| EQUITY | | |
| Issued capital | 60,761,198 | 60,261,198 |
| Retained earnings/(Accumulated Losses) | (60,009,414) | (60,014,033) |
| Capital profits reserve | 1,031,041 | 1,031,041 |
| Share Based Expenses Reserves | 23,276,903 | 23,276,903 |
| TOTAL EQUITY | 25,059,728 | 24,555,109 |
| STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME | | |
| Total profit/(loss) | 4,619 | 16,335 |
| Total comprehensive income | 4,619 | 16,335 |

Guarantees

MaxSec Group Limited has not entered into any guarantees, in the current or previous financial year, in relation to the debts of its subsidiaries.

Contractual commitments

At 30 June 2014, MaxSec Group Limited had not entered into any contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Notes To The Financial Statements (Cont.)

4. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

| | | | | Consolidated Group | |
|----|---------------------------------|---|------|--------------------|-----------|
| | | | | 2014 | 2013 |
| | | 1 | Note | \$ | \$ |
| a. | Re | venue from continuing operations | | | |
| | Sal | es revenue: | | | |
| | - | sale of goods | | 3,124,320 | 3,583,888 |
| | _ | provision of services | | * | 2 |
| | | | | 3,124,320 | 3,583,888 |
| | Oth | ner revenue: | | | |
| | ~ | interest received | | | |
| | | - other persons | | 19,578 | 26,270 |
| | | | | 19,578 | 26,270 |
| | | Total interest revenue on financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss | | | |
| | $\hat{x}_{i,j} = \hat{x}_{i,j}$ | R & D Tax Concession received | | 272,675 | 258,341 |
| | - | other revenue | | 1,210 | *** |
| | | | | 273,885 | 258,341 |
| | Tot | tal revenue | | 3,417,783 | 3,868,499 |
| | Oth | ner income: | | | |
| | _ | gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment | - | | |
| | | | | 3 . | (9) |
| b. | To | tal revenue and other income from continuing operations | | | |
| | - | attributable to members of the parent entity | | 3,417,783 | 3,868,499 |
| | _ | attributable to non-controlling interests | | (<u>E</u> | • |
| | | | | 3,417,783 | 3,868,499 |
| c. | Inc | ome from continuing operations and discontinued operation | | | |
| | _ | attributable to members of the parent entity | | 3,417,783 | 3,868,499 |
| | _ | attributable to non-controlling interests | | (** | - |
| | | | | 3,417,783 | 3,868,499 |
| | | | - | | |

Notes To The Financial Statements (Cont.)

5. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

| | | | | ated Group | |
|-------|---|--|------------|------------|--|
| | | | 2014 \$ | 2013 \$ | |
| Profi | it before income tax from continuing operations includes the following specific nses: | | J | Ą | |
| a. | Expenses | | | | |
| | Cost of sales | | 1,113,490 | 1,299,472 | |
| | Impairment of non-current investments | | | | |
| | Foreign currency translation losses | | | 35,818 | |
| | Bad and doubtful debts: | | | | |
| | trade receivables | | 1,774 | 41,117 | |
| | Total bad and doubtful debts | | 1,774 | 41,117 | |
| | Write-off of obsolete stock | | :45 | 39,852 | |
| | | | | | |

6. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

| | | Consolidated Group | |
|--------------------------|----|--------------------|----------|
| | | 2014 | 2013 |
| | | \$ | \$ |
| Trade debtors | | 655,156 | 623,741 |
| Provision for impairment | 6a | (1,774) | (14,372) |
| | | 653,382 | 609,369 |

a. Provision for Impairment of Receivables

Movement in the provision for impairment of receivables is as follows:

| Opening Balance | (14,372) | 3 |
|---------------------|----------|----------|
| Change for the year | 12,598 | (14,372) |
| Amounts Written Off | 150 | * |
| Closing Balance | (1,774) | (14,372) |

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to any single counterparty or group of counterparties other than those receivables specifically provided for and mentioned within Note 6. The class of assets described as "trade and other receivables" is considered to be the main source of credit risk related to the Group.

7. INVENTORIES

| Raw materials and stores | | |
|---------------------------|---------|---------|
| Direct materials at cost | 344,427 | 348,275 |
| Finished Goods | 318,564 | 304,392 |
| Total inventories at cost | 662,991 | 652,667 |

Notes To The Financial Statements (Cont.)

8. OTHER ASSETS

| Other Assets (Current) | | | |
|---------------------------------|-----|--------|--------|
| Security Deposit | | 22,259 | 27,932 |
| Prepayments | | 49,541 | 61,221 |
| Other Current Assets | | 7,925 | 72,270 |
| Receivable from related parties | 20b | - | .₹A |

79,725

161,423

9. DIVIDENDS

No dividends have been paid or declared since the end of the previous financial year.

10. CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Interests in controlled entities

The subsidiaries listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares which are held directly by the Group. The proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the Group. Each subsidiary's principal place of business is also its country of incorporation.

| | Country of Incorporation | Percentage Owned (%)* | |
|---|-----------------------------|-----------------------|------|
| | | 2014 | 2013 |
| Subsidiaries of MaxSec Group Limited: | | | |
| BQT Solutions (Australia) Pty Ltd | Australia | 100 | 100 |
| BQT Solutions (UK) Limited # | UK | 100 | 100 |
| BQT Solutions America Inc. | USA | 100 | 100 |
| BQT Solutions (SEA) Pte. Ltd.# (previously known as Magna Electronics Pte. Ltd) | Singapore | 100 | 100 |
| BQT Solutions (NZ) Limited# (previously known as Manz Engineering Limited) | New Zealand | 100 | 100 |
| BQT Intelligent Security Systems Pty Ltd | Australia | 60 | 60 |
| 4C Satellites Limited | Australia | 60 | 60 |

^{*} Percentage of voting power is in proportion to ownership

[#] Not audited by the parent entity's auditors

Notes To The Financial Statements (Cont.)

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

| | Consolidated Group | |
|--|--------------------|-----------|
| | 2014 | 2013 |
| | \$ | \$ |
| Plant & equipment | | |
| At cost | 574,692 | 607,831 |
| Accumulated depreciation | (532,490) | (577,075) |
| | 42,202 | 30,756 |
| Furniture, fixtures and fittings | | |
| At cost | 71,486 | 71,486 |
| Accumulated depreciation | (71,486) | (68,717) |
| | | 2,769 |
| Total plant and equipment, furniture & fixture | 42,202 | 33,525 |
| Total at cost | 646,177 | 679,317 |
| Accumulated depreciation and amortisation | (603,975) | (645,792) |
| Total Plant & equipment, furniture and fittings | 42,202 | 33,525 |
| Movement in carrying amounts | | |
| Movement in the carrying amount of each class of property, plant and | | |
| equipment between the beginning and the end of the current financial | | |
| year: Plant and Equipment | | |
| Balance at beginning of year | 30,756 | 42,930 |
| Additions/(Disposals) | 15,130 | 15,166 |
| Depreciation expense | (3,684) | (27,340) |
| Balance at end of year | 42,202 | 30,756 |
| Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings | 42,202 | 30,730 |
| Balance at beginning of year | 2,769 | |
| Additions/(Disposals) | 2,707 | 2,910 |
| Depreciation expense | (2,769) | (141) |
| Balance at end of year | (=,, <>) | 2,769 |
| | | -,,07 |

Notes To The Financial Statements (Cont.)

12. INTANGIBLES ASSETS

| | Consolidated Group | | |
|--------------------------------|--------------------|--------------|--|
| | 2014 | 2013 | |
| | \$ | \$ | |
| Goodwill - deemed cost | 17,121,944 | 17,536,203 | |
| Less: Accumulated impairment | (16,583,536) | (16,984,768) | |
| | 538,408 | 551,435 | |
| Research and development | 2,929,666 | 2,929,666 | |
| Less: Accumulated amortisation | (2,929,666) | (2,929,666) | |
| | | 5 | |
| Patents | 193,536 | 197,030 | |
| Less: Accumulated amortisation | (193,536) | (195,757) | |
| | | 1,273 | |
| Product development costs | 1,103,509 | 864,679 | |
| Less: Accumulated amortisation | (65,397) | (19,929) | |
| | 1,038,112 | 844,750 | |
| Total intangibles | 1,576,520 | 1,397,458 | |
| Reconciliations Goodwill | | | |
| Balance at beginning of year | 551,435 | 496,865 | |
| Exchange Adjustment | (13,027) | 54,570 | |
| Additions | - | - | |
| Impairment | <u> </u> | | |
| Closing value at end of year | 538,408 | 551,435 | |
| Patents | | | |
| Balance at beginning of year | 1,273 | 4,007 | |
| Additions | * | ** | |
| Amortisation | (1,273) | (2,734) | |
| Impairment | <u> </u> | | |
| Closing value at end of year | | 1,273 | |
| Product Development Costs | | | |
| Balance at beginning of year | 844,750 | 356,221 | |
| Additions | 244,254 | 488,529 | |
| Amortisation | (50,892) | :=: | |
| Impairment | | | |
| Closing value at end of year | 1,038,112 | 844,750 | |

Intangible assets, other than goodwill, have finite useful lives. The current amortisation charges for intangible assets are included under depreciation and amortisation expense per the statement of comprehensive income. Goodwill has an infinite life.

Notes To The Financial Statements (Cont.)

12. INTANGIBLES ASSETS (Cont.)

Impairment disclosures

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating unit which is based on the Group's reporting segments:

| | 2014 | 2013 |
|------------------------|---------|---------|
| | \$ | \$ |
| Security locks segment | 538,408 | 551,435 |
| Total | 538,408 | 551,435 |

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit above is determined based on value-in-use calculations. Value-in-use is calculated based on the present value of cash flow projections over a 5-year period. The cash flows are discounted using the interest rate of 15%.

The following assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculations:

Discount Rate

0010

0014

Security locks segment

Management has based the value-in-use calculations on budgets for each reporting segment. These budgets are based on the expectation of a program of comercialisation of products to project revenue. Costs are calculated taking into account historical gross margins. Discount rates are pre-tax and are adjusted to incorporate risks associated with a particular segment.

13. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

| | Consolidated Group | | |
|---------------------------------------|--------------------|---------|--|
| | 2014 | 2013 | |
| | \$ | \$ | |
| Trade and Other Payables (Current) | | | |
| Trade creditors | 199,985 | 314,195 | |
| Sundry creditors and accrued expenses | 141,956 | 334,218 | |
| | 341,941 | 648,413 | |

14. PROVISIONS

| Consolidated Group | | |
|--------------------|---|--|
| 2014 | 2013 | |
| \$ | \$ | |
| | | |
| 105,223 | 88,907 | |
| 102,701 | 435,840 | |
| 207,924 | 524,747 | |
| | | |
| 38,765 | 34,318 | |
| 38,765 | 34,318 | |
| | 2014 \$ 105,223 102,701 207,924 | |

Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for employee benefits represents amounts accrued for annual leave and long service leave.

The current portion for this provision includes the total amount accrued for annual leave entitlements and the amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have vested due to employees having completed the required period of service. Based on past experience, the Group does not expect the full amount of annual leave or long service leave balances classified as current liabilities to be settled within the next 12 months. However, these amounts must be classified as current liabilities since the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of these amounts in the event employees wish to use their leave entitlement.

The non-current portion for this provision includes amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have not yet vested in relation to those employees who have not yet completed the required period of service.

15. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

| | 2014 | | 2013 | |
|--|------------------|------------|------------------|------------|
| | Number of shares | \$ | Number of shares | \$ |
| (a) Issued and paid up capital | | | | |
| 189,673,643 ordinary shares fully paid | | | | |
| | 189,673,643 | 60,761,198 | 169,673,643 | 60,261,198 |
| (b) Movements in shares on issue | | | | |
| Beginning of the financial year | 169,673,643 | 60,261,198 | 169,673,643 | 60,261,198 |
| Shares issued during the year: | | | | |
| Placement at 2.5 cents | 20,000,000 | 500,000 | | |
| End of the financial year | 189,673,643 | 60,761,198 | 169,673,643 | 60,261,198 |

(c) Share Options

A summary of the movements of all company options issues is as follows:

| | Number | Weighted Average Exercise Price |
|--|--------------|------------------------------------|
| | | Eact cloc 111co |
| Options outstanding as at 30 June 2012 | 50,914,286 | 6.4 cents |
| Granted | ₩. | // ≟ E |
| Forfeited | | (15) |
| Exercised | 2 : : | () (|
| Expired | 525 | ñ# |
| Options outstanding as at 30 June 2013 | 50,914,286 | 6.4 cents |
| Granted | *** | ,(#) |
| Forfeited | 25 | 38 |
| Exercised | (# | i . € |
| Expired | 26,714,286 | 10.0 cents |
| Options outstanding as at 30 June 2014 | 24,200,000 | 2.5 cents |

For information relating to the Company's employee options, including details of options issued, exercised & lapsed during the financial year & the options outstanding at year end refer to Note 17.

16. RESERVES

| | Consolidated Group | | |
|--------------------------------------|--------------------|------------|--|
| | 2014 | | |
| | \$ | \$ | |
| Capital Profits Reserve * | 1,031,042 | 1,031,042 | |
| Share Based Expenses Reserve ** | 23,276,902 | 23,276,902 | |
| Foreign Currency Translation Reserve | (7,608) | 29,449 | |
| | 24,300,336 | 24,337,393 | |

^{*} Relates to profit on sale of listed investments

17. INTERESTS OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

a. Names and positions held of Parent Entity Directors and Specified Executives in office at any time during the financial year are:

Directors

R A Broomfield - Chairman - Non-Executive

G J Cleaves - CEO

J J Landsberg - Non-Executive

^{**} Relates to share based expenses

b. Directors' Remuneration

Refer to the remuneration report contained in the directors' report for details of the remuneration paid or payable to each member of the Group's key management personnel (KMP) for the year ended 30 June 2014.

The totals of remuneration paid to KMP of the company and the Group during the year are as follows:

| | 2014 | 2013 \$ | |
|------------------------------|---------|------------|--|
| | \$ | | |
| Short-term employee benefits | 256,450 | 264,574 | |
| Post-employment benefits | 23,722 | 23,801 | |
| Other long-term benefits | | - | |
| Share-based payments | | - | |
| Total KMP Compensation | 280,172 | 288,375 | |

Short-term employee benefits

These amounts include fees and benefits paid to the non-executive Chair and non-executive directors as well as all salary, paid leave benefits, fringe benefits and cash bonuses awarded to executive directors and other KMP.

Post-employment benefits

These amounts are the current-year's estimated cost of providing for the Group's defined benefits scheme post-retirement, superannuation contributions made during the year and post-employment life insurance benefits.

Other long-term benefits

These amounts represent long service leave benefits accruing during the year, long-term disability benefits and deferred bonus payments.

Share-based payments

These amounts represent the expense related to the participation of KMP in equity-settled benefit schemes as measured by the fair value of the options, rights and shares granted on grant date.

Further information in relation to KMP remuneration can be found in the directors' report.

c. Shares Issued on Exercise of Remuneration Options

No options were exercised during the year, which were previously granted as remuneration.

d. Options and Rights Holdings

There are no options held by specific people who were Directors in part of the year.

e. Shareholdings

Number of Shares Held by Parent Entity Directors

| | Balance | Received as | Options | Net Change | Balance |
|-------------------------|------------|--------------|-----------|------------|------------|
| | 01.07.2013 | Remuneration | Exercised | Other | 30.06.2014 |
| Parent Entity Directors | | | | | |
| R A Broomfield * | 2,500,000 | | | | 2,500,000 |

^{*} Ms Lynette Joy Sanders, who is associated with R A Broomfield, held 1,250,000 shares as at 15 Sept 2014.

18. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

| | Consolidated Group | | |
|---|--------------------|--------|--|
| | 2014 | 2013 | |
| | \$ | \$ | |
| Amounts received or due and receivable by auditors for: | | | |
| (a) Audit or review of the financial report of the entity and any other entity in the consolidated entity | | | |
| - Wong & Mayes | 53,500 | 42,757 | |
| - Other auditors | 20,281 | 24,371 | |
| | 73,781 | 67,128 | |
| (b) Other services | | | |
| - Wong & Mayes | (16,155) | 37,752 | |
| - Other auditors | 28,470 | 8,067 | |
| | 12,315 | 45,819 | |

19. EARNINGS PER SHARE

| | 2014 | 2013 |
|---|-------------|-------------|
| | \$ | \$ |
| Profit/(loss) used in calculation of earnings per share | 187,193 | 260,004 |
| Basic Profit/(loss) per share | 0.109 cents | 0.153 cents |
| No of ordinary shares on issue used in the calculation of | | |
| basic profit/(loss) per share | 172,358,375 | 169,673,643 |
| Diluted Profit/(loss) per share | 0.109 cents | 0.153 cents |
| No of ordinary shares on issue used in the calculation of diluted profit/(loss) per share | 172,358,375 | 169,673,643 |

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a. The Group's main related parties are as follows:

i. Key management personnel:

Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any Director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity, are considered key management personnel.

For details of disclosures relating to key management personnel, refer to Note 17: Interests of Key Management Personnel (KMP).

ii. Other related parties:

Other related parties include entities controlled by the ultimate parent entity and entities over which key management personnel exercise significant influence.

b. Transactions with related parties:

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated.

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

BQT Solutions America Inc, a controlled entity, shares a sales resource on a 50/50 basis with Future Fibre Technologies (USA) Inc, a company of which our Chairman is CEO and Director.

21. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Segment Information

Identification of reportable segments

The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the Board of Directors in assessing performance and determining the allocation of resources.

The Group is managed primarily on the basis of product category and service offerings as the diversification of the Group's operations inherently have notably different risk profiles and performance assessment criteria. Operating segments are therefore determined on the same basis.

The Group operates in the smart card access control and security locks industries. For smart card access control system, it operates in three main geographic areas being Australia, United Kingdom and Middle East, United States of America. For security locks, it operates under the company of BQT Solutions (SEA) Pte. Ltd and its wholly owned subsidiary — BQT Solutions (NZ) Limited in Southeast Asia and New Zealand.

Basis of accounting for purposes of reporting by operating segments

a. Accounting policies adopted

Unless stated otherwise, all amounts reported to the Board of Directors, being the chief operating decision makers with respect to operating segments, are determined in accordance with accounting policies that are consistent with those adopted in the annual financial statements of the Group.

b. Intersegment transactions

An internally determined transfer price is set for all intersegment sales. This price is reset quarterly and is based on what would be realised in the event the sale was made to an external party at arm's length. All such transactions are eliminated on consolidation of the Group's financial statements.

Corporate charges are allocated to reporting segments based on the segments' overall proportion of revenue generation within the Group. The Board of Directors believes this is representative of likely consumption of head office expenditure that should be used in assessing segment performance and cost recoveries.

Intersegment loans payable and receivable are initially recognised at the consideration received/to be received net of transaction costs.

c. Segment assets

Where an asset is used across multiple segments, the asset is allocated to the segment that receives the majority of the economic value from the asset. In most instances, segment assets are clearly identifiable on the basis of their nature and physical location.

d. Segment liabilities

Liabilities are allocated to segments where there is a direct nexus between the incurrence of the liability and the operations of the segment. Borrowings and tax liabilities are generally considered to relate to the Group as a whole and are not allocated. Segment liabilities include trade and other payables and certain direct borrowings.

e. Segment information

i. Segment performance

| cogen penemanos | Australia | UK | US | SEA | Total |
|-----------------------|-----------|---|--------|---------|-----------|
| | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ |
| 30-Jun-14 | | | | | |
| REVENUE | | | | | |
| External sales | 1,833,110 | 455,141 | 47,766 | 788,303 | 3,124,320 |
| Intersegment sales | 687,951 | | 4 | 45,510 | 733,461 |
| Interest Income | 19,579 | : : :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: | ā | | 19,579 |
| Total segment revenue | 2,540,640 | 455,141 | 47,766 | 833,813 | 3,877,360 |

| | Australia | UK | US | SEA | Total |
|--|--------------|------------------|----------|----------------|------------|
| | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ |
| Reconciliation of segment revenue to group revenue | | | | | |
| Other revenue | 273,885 | () | ÷ | - | 273,885 |
| Intersegment elimination | (687,951) | 3=1 | - | (45,510) | (733,461) |
| Revenue from discontinued operations | (00.1,500) | :::: | - | :=: | 848 |
| Total group revenue | 2,126,573 | 455,141 | 47,766 | 788,303 | 3,417,783 |
| Segment net profit from continuing operations before tax | 587,340 | (111,899) | (71,329) | (216,919) | 187,193 |
| Net profit before tax from continuing operations | | | | | 187,193 |
| 20.7 | | | | | |
| 30-Jun-13 | | | | | |
| REVENUE | 0.460.000 | 424.200 | 167.402 | 501 005 | 2 502 000 |
| External sales | 2,460,200 | 434,300 | 167,483 | 521,905 | 3,583,888 |
| Intersegment sales | 917,089 | 1 | N. | 42,038 | 959,127 |
| Interest revenue | 26,270 | 424.200 | 167.402 | 5/2 0/2 | 26,270 |
| Total segment revenue | 3,403,559 | 434,300 | 167,483 | 563,943 | 4,569,285 |
| Reconciliation of segment revenue to group revenue | | | | | |
| Other revenue | 258,341 | 14 | - | 2 | 258,341 |
| Intersegment elimination | (917,089) | - | | (42,038) | (959,127) |
| Revenue from discontinued operations | - | | • | (- | = 0 |
| Total group revenue | 2,744,811 | 434,300 | 167,483 | 521,905 | 3,868,499 |
| Segment net profit from continuing operations before tax | 620,866 | (209,481) | (43,498) | (107,883) | 260,004 |
| Net profit before tax from continuing operations | | | | := | 260,004 |
| ii. Segment assets | | | | | |
| | Australia | UK | US | SEA | Total |
| | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ |
| 30-Jun-14 | | | | | |
| Segment assets | 1,996,948 | 168,254 | 33,477 | 1,616,979 | 3,815,658 |
| Segment asset increases for the period: | | | | | |
| capital expenditure | 196,807 | (-) | - | 50,796 | 247,603 |
| acquisitions | 5,705 | (%) | 582 | 3.00 | 5,705 |
| Total group assets | 2,199,460 | 168,254 | 33,477 | 1,667,775 | 4,068,966 |
| 30-Jun-13 | | | | | |
| | 2,106,000 | 159,470 | 9,914 | 1,217,180 | 3,492,564 |
| Segment assets Segment asset increases for the period: | ۷,100,000 | 133,470 | 2,714 | 1,417,100 | 3,474,304 |
| | 293,107 | | | | |
| capital expenditure | | 151 | - | 252,008 | 545,115 |
| acquisitions | 5 = 5 | • | (#6 | * | 28 |
| Total group assets | 2,399,107 | 159,470 | 9,914 | 1,469,188 | 4,037,679 |

| iii. Segment liabilities | | | | | |
|---|--------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|--------------|
| | Australia | UK | US | SEA | Total |
| | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ |
| 30-Jun-14 | | | | | |
| Segment liabilities | 21,387,101 | 8,871,366 | 1,869,990 | 1,272,686 | 33,401,144 |
| Reconciliation of segment liabilities to group liabilities: | | | | | |
| Intersegment eliminations | (17,343,011) | (9,813,194) | (4,433,678) | (1,222,632) | (32,812,515) |
| Total group liabilities | 4,044,091 | (941,828) | (2,563,688) | 50,054 | 588,629 |
| 30-Jun-13 | | | | | |
| Segment liabilities | 21,598,338 | 7,970,560 | 1,808,817 | 1,128,705 | 32,506,420 |
| Reconciliation of segment liabilities to group liabilities: | | | | | |
| Intersegment eliminations | (20,767,175) | (7,720,415) | (1,781,325) | (1,030,027) | (31,298,942) |
| Total group liabilities | 831,163 | 250,145 | 27,492 | 98,678 | 1,207,478 |

22. CASH FLOW INFORMATION

| | | Consolidated Group | |
|--------|--|--------------------|------------|
| | | 2014 | 2013 |
| | | \$ | \$ |
| Reco | nciliation of Cash Flow from Operations with Profit after Income Tax | | |
| Profit | after income tax | 187,193 | 260,004 |
| Cash | flows excluded from profit attributable to operating activities: | | |
| _ | finance costs on debentures | ? * | u . |
| Non-o | eash flows in profit: | | |
| _ | amortisation | 52,165 | 2,734 |
| _ | depreciation | 6,453 | 27,481 |
| _ | write-off of bad debts | X 5. | 41,117 |
| _ | write-off of obsolete stock | 096 | 39,852 |
| _ | write-down of inventory to fair value | 9# | 3 9 |
| _ | net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment | (E) | = |
| _ | Unrealised gain/(loss) on exchange | (12,620) | 17,342 |
| Share | of associated companies net profit after income tax and dividends | 18 | 3 0 |
| | ges in assets and liabilities, net of the effects of purchase and disposal of liaries: | | |
| _ | (increase)/decrease in trade and term receivables | (44,013) | (6,491) |
| _ | (increase)/decrease in prepayments | 11,680 | 171,371 |
| _ | (increase)/decrease in inventories | (10,324) | 79,548 |
| _ | (increase)/decrease in other assets | 70,019 | (13,312) |
| - | increase/(decrease) in trade payables and accruals | (293,852) | (293,889) |
| _ | increase/(decrease) in income tax payable | 150 | |
| _ | increase/(decrease) in provisions | (312,376) | 39,524 |
| Cash | flow from operations | (345,675) | 365,281 |
| | | | |

23. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE DATE

The Directors are not aware of any significant events that have occurred since the end of financial year.

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

A summary of the movements of company options issues to employees is as follows:

| | Consolid | ated Entity |
|--|----------------|----------------|
| | 30.06.14 | 30.06.13 |
| | No. of Options | No. of Options |
| Movement in the number of share options held by employees and ex-employees | - | • |
| are as follows: | | |
| Opening balance | 9#1 | 2 |
| Granted during the year | 8 | 2 |
| Sold/Exercised during the year | \@ | 2 |
| Expired/forfeited during the year | 166 | 2 |
| Closing Balance | 5¥ | • |
| | | |

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, accounts receivable and payable, loans to and from subsidiaries.

The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 139 as detailed in the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows:

| | Note | Consolidated G | Group |
|--|-------------|----------------|-------------|
| | | 2014 | 2013 |
| Financial assets | | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents | | 1,054,147 | 1,183,237 |
| Loans and receivables | 6 | 653,382 | 609,369 |
| Total financial assets | | 1,707,529 | 1,792,606 |
| Financial liabilities | | | |
| Financial liabilities at amortised cost: | | | |
| trade and other payables | 13 | 341,941 | 648,413 |
| borrowings | <u></u> | | |
| Total financial liabilities | | 341,941 | 648,413 |

Financial Risk Management Policies

The Board of Directors reviews the effectiveness of internal controls relating to commodity price risk, counterparty credit risk, currency risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.

The overall risk management strategy seeks to assist the consolidated group in meeting its financial targets, while minimising potential adverse effects on financial performance. Its functions include the review of the use of hedging derivative instruments, credit risk policies and future cash flow requirements.

Specific Financial Risk Exposures and Management

The main risks the Group is exposed to through its financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk consisting of interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk (commodity and equity price risk).

There have been no substantive changes in the types of risks the Group is exposed to, how these risks arise, or the Board's objectives, policies and processes for managing or measuring the risks from the previous period.

a. Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk relating to financial assets arises from the potential non-performance by counterparties of contract obligations that could lead to a financial loss to the Group.

Credit risk is managed through the maintenance of procedures (such procedures include the utilisation of systems for the approval, granting and renewal of credit limits, regular monitoring of exposures against such limits and monitoring of the financial stability of significant customers and counterparties), ensuring to the extent possible that customers and counterparties to transactions are of sound credit worthiness. Such monitoring is used in assessing receivables for impairment. Depending on the division within the Group, credit terms are generally 30 days from the invoice date.

Credit risk exposures

The maximum exposure to credit risk by class of recognised financial assets at the end of the reporting period excluding the value of any collateral or other security held, is equivalent to the carrying amount and classification of those financial assets (net of any provisions) as presented in the statement of financial position.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk with any single counterparty or group of counterparties. However, on a geographical basis, the Group has significant credit risk exposures to Australia given the substantial operation in the region.

Credit risk related to balances with banks and other financial institutions is managed by the Board in accordance with approved internal control policy.

b. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group might encounter difficulty in settling its debts or otherwise meeting its obligations related to financial liabilities. The Group manages this risk through the following mechanisms:

- preparing forward-looking cash flow analyses in relation to its operating, investing and financing activities;
- using derivatives that are only traded in highly liquid markets;
- monitoring undrawn credit facilities;
- obtaining funding from a variety of sources;
- maintaining a reputable credit profile;
- managing credit risk related to financial assets;
- only investing surplus cash with major financial institutions; and
- comparing the maturity profile of financial liabilities with the realisation profile of financial assets.

Cash flows realised from financial assets reflect management's expectation as to the timing of realisation. Actual timing may therefore differ from that disclosed. The timing of cash flows presented in the table to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual settlement dates and does not reflect management's expectations that banking facilities will be rolled forward.

c. Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk

Exposure to interest rate risk arises on financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at the end of the reporting period whereby a future change in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair value of fixed rate financial instruments. The Group is also exposed to earnings volatility on floating rate instruments.

The financial instruments that primarily expose the Group to interest rate risk are borrowings, forward exchange contracts, fixed interest securities, and cash and cash equivalents.

(ii) Foreign exchange risk

Exposure to foreign exchange risk may result in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument fluctuating due to movement in foreign exchange rates of currencies in which the Group holds financial instruments which are other than the AUD functional currency of the Group.

With instruments being held by overseas operations, fluctuations in the US dollar and UK pound sterling may impact on the Group's financial results unless those exposures are appropriately hedged.

(iii) Other price risk

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices largely due to demand and supply factors (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) for commodities.

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk through its overseas materials sourcing. Contracts for the sale and physical delivery of components are executed whenever possible on a pricing basis intended to achieve a relevant index target. Where pricing terms deviate from the index, derivative commodity contracts may be used when available to return realised prices to the index.

The Group is also exposed to securities price risk on investments held for trading over the medium to longer terms. Such risk is managed through diversification of investments across industries and geographical locations.

Fair Values

Fair value estimation

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in the following table and can be compared to their carrying amounts as presented in the statement of financial position. Fair value is the amount at which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

Fair values derived may be based on information that is estimated or subject to judgment, where changes in assumptions may have a material impact on the amounts estimated. Areas of judgment and the assumptions have been detailed below. Where possible, valuation information used to calculate fair value is extracted from the market, with more reliable information available from markets that are actively traded.

| | | 2014 | | 2013 | |
|-----------------------------|------|-----------------------------|------------------------|-----------------------------|------------------------|
| Consolidated Group | Note | Carrying Amount \$000 | Fair Value \$000 | Carrying Amount \$000 | Fair Value \$000 |
| Financial assets | | | | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents | (i) | 1,054,147 | 1,054,147 | 1,183,237 | 1,183,237 |
| Trade and other receivables | (i) | 653,382 | 653,382 | 609,369 | 609,369 |
| Total financial assets | | 1,707,529 | 1,707,529 | 1,792,606 | 1,792,606 |
| Financial liabilities | | | | | |
| Trade and other payables | (i) | 341,941 | 341,941 | 648,413 | 648,413 |
| Total financial liabilities | | 341,941 | 341,941 | 648,413 | 648,413 |

The fair values disclosed in the above table have been determined based on the following methodologies:

(i) Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and trade and other payables are short-term instruments in nature whose carrying amount is equivalent to fair value. Trade and other payables exclude amounts provided for annual leave, which is outside the scope of AASB 139.

Directors' Declaration

The Directors of the company declare that:

- 1. the financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 17 to 46, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and:
 - a. comply with Australian Accounting Standards, which, as stated in accounting policy Note 1 to the financial statements, constitute compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS); and
 - b. give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2014 and of the performance for the year ended on that date of the company and consolidated group;
- 2. the Chief Executive Officer has declared that:
 - a. the financial records of the company for the financial year have been properly maintained in accordance with s 286 of the Corporations Act 2001;
 - b. the financial statements and notes for the financial year comply with Accounting Standards; and
 - c. the financial statements and notes for the financial year give a true and fair view; and
- 3. in the Directors' opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Geoffrey J Cleaves CEO and Director

Sydney, 24th September 2014



A.B.N. 33 154 816 995 (incorporating Powell Kwok & Co) LEVEL 16 309 KENT STREET SYDNEY N.S.W. 2000

P.O. BOX H169 AUSTRALIA SOUARE, SYDNEY 1215

> TELEPHONE (02) 9290 1633 FACSIMILE (02) 9262 1403 mailbox@wongmayes.com.au www.wongmayes.com.au

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MAXSEC GROUP LIMITED

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of MaxSec Group Limited (the company), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and the directors' declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001,

which has been given to the directors of MaxSec Group Limited, would be in the same terms if provided to the directors as at the date of this auditor's report.

Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion:

- a. the financial report of MaxSec Group Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
 - i. giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June 2014 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and
 - ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
- b. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1.

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the remuneration report included in pages 14 to 15 of the directors' report for the year ended 30 June 2014. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the remuneration report in accordance with s 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the remuneration report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion the remuneration report of MaxSec Group Limited for the year ended 30 June 2014 complies with s 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

WONG & MAYES
Chartered Accountants

Anita Wong Partner

Dated this 23rd day of September 2014

ASX Additional Information

Additional information required by the Australian Stock Exchange Ltd and not shown elsewhere in this report is as follows. The information is current as at 15 September 2014.

1. Ordinary fully paid shares

(a) Distribution of shareholders

Category (size of holding):

| | Number of holders | Number of shares |
|------------------|-------------------|------------------|
| 1-1,000 | 654 | 343,450 |
| 1,001-5,000 | 692 | 1,664,070 |
| 5,001-10,000 | 159 | 1,159,725 |
| 10,001-100,000 | 216 | 6,797,185 |
| 100,001 and over | 63 | 179,709,213 |

(b) The number of shareholders holding less than a marketable parcel of 1,653 5,771,828 33,334 shares are:

(c) The names of the substantial shareholders listed in the holding company's register are:

| | | Number of shares |
|----|---|------------------|
| 1. | PANDON HOLDINGS PTE LIMITED | 26,857,771 |
| 2. | EKOGLOBAL PTY. LIMITED | 24,760,788 |
| 3. | PIERCE SECURITY PTE LIMITED | 21,530,488 |
| 4. | PIERCE ATLANTIC PTE LIMITED | 20,836,289 |
| 5. | CADENCE (90) INVESTMENTS NO 1 PTY LTD | 20,178,269 |
| 6. | MR MICHAEL MCGEEVER | 15,000,000 |
| 7. | 4C CONTROLS INC., RUDANA INVESTMENT GROUP AG AND PRIME ASSET FINANCE LIMITD | 12,800,000 |
| 8. | MOHAMMAD YOUSEF AL ALI AND CAPITAL TRUST HOLDING AG | 8,571,429 |
| 9. | ABDUL RAHMAN FALAKNAZ AND FALAK HOLDING LLC | 8,571,429 |

(d) Voting rights

All ordinary shares (whether fully paid or not) carry one vote per share without restriction.

ASX Additional Information (cont.)

(e) Twenty largest shareholders

The names of the twenty largest holders of quoted shares are:

Ordinary Shares

| | Number of shares | Percentage of ordinary shares |
|--|---|--|
| PIERCE ATLANTIC PTE LTD | 20,836,289 | 10.99 |
| BELL POTTER NOMINEES LTD <bb a="" c="" nominees=""></bb> | 20,268,000 | 10.69 |
| CADENCE (90) INVESTMENTS NO 1 PTY LTD | 20,178,269 | 10.64 |
| EKOGLOBAL PTY LIMITED < EKOINVESTMENTS A/C> | 19,260,788 | 10.15 |
| HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED | 18,520,732 | 9.76 |
| MR MICHAEL MCGEEVER | 15,000,000 | 7.91 |
| 4C CONTROLS INC | 12,800,000 | 6.75 |
| MR NEIL HINGSTON < HINGSTON FAMILY A/C> | 7,309,239 | 3.85 |
| PANDON HOLDINGS PTE LIMITED | 6,542,146 | 3.45 |
| MR STEVEN BRYCE OUTTRIM | 5,500,000 | 2.90 |
| MR PATRICK BENEDICT TWOMEY + MS GENEVIEVE ROSVALL <pb &="" gl<br="">TWOMEY FAMILY A/C></pb> | 5,000,000 | 2.64 |
| MR MATTHEW NYE-HINGSTON | 3,180,580 | 1.68 |
| MR ROBERT ANDREW BROOMFIELD | 2,500,000 | 1.32 |
| JP MORGAN NOMINEES LIMITED < CASH INCOME A/C> | 1,861,627 | 0.98 |
| MS KAREN SOANS | 1,716,405 | 0.90 |
| NEFCO NOMINEES PTY LTD | 1,391,572 | 0.73 |
| LITTLEBET COM PTY LTD | 1,315,767 | 0.66 |
| MS LYNETTE JOY SANDERS | 1,250,000 | 0.69 |
| DR MICHAEL IAN NISSEN | 1,212,144 | 0.64 |
| MUR PTY LTD <paval a="" c="" discretionary=""></paval> | 1,144,481 | 0.60 |
| | 166,788,039 | 87.93 |
| | BELL POTTER NOMINEES LTD <bb a="" c="" nominees=""> CADENCE (90) INVESTMENTS NO 1 PTY LTD EKOGLOBAL PTY LIMITED <ekoinvestments a="" c=""> HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED MR MICHAEL MCGEEVER 4C CONTROLS INC MR NEIL HINGSTON <inited &="" +="" <pb="" a="" benedict="" bryce="" c="" family="" genevieve="" gl="" mr="" ms="" outtrim="" patrick="" rosvall="" steven="" twomey=""> MR MATTHEW NYE-HINGSTON MR ROBERT ANDREW BROOMFIELD JP MORGAN NOMINEES LIMITED <cash a="" c="" income=""> MS KAREN SOANS NEFCO NOMINEES PTY LTD LITTLEBET COM PTY LTD MS LYNETTE JOY SANDERS DR MICHAEL IAN NISSEN</cash></inited></ekoinvestments></bb> | PIERCE ATLANTIC PTE LTD BELL POTTER NOMINEES LTD <bb a="" c="" nominees=""> CADENCE (90) INVESTMENTS NO 1 PTY LTD EKOGLOBAL PTY LIMITED <ekoinvestments a="" c=""> EKOGLOBAL PTY LIMITED <ekoinvestments a="" c=""> 19,260,788 HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED 18,520,732 MR MICHAEL MCGEEVER 15,000,000 4C CONTROLS INC 12,800,000 MR NEIL HINGSTON <hingston a="" c="" family=""> 7,309,239 PANDON HOLDINGS PTE LIMITED 6,542,146 MR STEVEN BRYCE OUTTRIM 5,500,000 MR PATRICK BENEDICT TWOMEY + MS GENEVIEVE ROSVALL <pb &="" a="" c="" family="" gl="" twomey=""> 5,000,000 MR MATTHEW NYE-HINGSTON 3,180,580 MR ROBERT ANDREW BROOMFIELD 2,500,000 JP MORGAN NOMINEES LIMITED <cash a="" c="" income=""> 1,861,627 MS KAREN SOANS 1,716,405 NEFCO NOMINEES PTY LTD 1,315,767 MS LYNETTE JOY SANDERS 1,250,000 DR MICHAEL IAN NISSEN 1,212,144 MUR PTY LTD <paval a="" c="" discretionary=""> 1,144,481</paval></cash></pb></hingston></ekoinvestments></ekoinvestments></bb> |

2. Options

(a) Distribution of equity securities

The number of option holders, by size of holding, in each class of option are:

| | Number of holders | Number of options |
|------------------|-------------------|-------------------|
| 1-1,000 | 0 | 0 |
| 1,001-5,000 | 0 | 0 |
| 5,001-10,000 | 0 | 0 |
| 10,001-100,000 | 0 | 0 |
| 100,001 and over | 2 | 24,200,000 |

ASX Additional Information (cont.)

(b) Twenty largest option holders

The names of the twenty largest holders of quoted options are:

| 1 PANDON HOLDINGS PTE LIMITED | | | | |
|-------------------------------|---|------------|-------|-------------|
| | 1 | PANDON HOL | DINGS | PTF LIMITED |

MR JOHN GENNER

| Number of options | Percentage of quoted options |
|-------------------|---------------------------------|
| 21,700,000 | 89.67 |
| 2,500,000 | 10.33 |
| 24,200,000 | 100.00 |

(c) Voting rights
Options do not carry voting rights